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Department of Works and Engineering 
 

July 12, 2022 
 
Dear Proponents, 
 
Ref: 61-71-200 Achilles Bay Rebuild (RFQ) – Addendum #2 
 

This Addendum #2 contains (2) pages, and one attachment. 
 

The following addendum supersedes information contained in the RFQ to the extent referenced. 
This addendum forms part of the RFQ documents and will be subject to all of the terms and conditions set 
out in the RFQ process. 
 
Questions and Responses 
 

Q. What is the expected start date for these works? 
R. MPW is flexible on the start date, but we are targeting mid-August. 

 
Q. Have the existing top steps to be retained or is it the intention that these be demolished and 

reconstructed?  
R. Intention is to retain. If during the course of the works they are found to be unsuitable, then 

reconstruction will be handled as a variation.  
 
Q. If they have to be retained, does the bottom step have to be adjusted to match the riser dimension 

on the other steps? 
R. The updated drawings, included in this addendum, show a rise:run of 6:12. The contractor may adjust 

this to suit site constraints, within acceptable limits. All steps within a flight should have consistent 
rise:run. 
 

Q. The bottom landing does not go down to bedrock, is this correct? 
R. The bottom landing is resting on concrete backfilled down to bedrock. Depending on the actual 

bedrock depth, the backfill may need to incorporate dowels drilled into the bedrock. The inclusion of 
dowels can be handled as a variation if required.    

 
Q. Is there set dimensions for the bottom landing? 
R. The minimum dimension is shown on the updated drawings, included in this addendum. 
 
Q. For the new RC steps, what is the riser dimension and what is the going dimension? 
R. 6” riser, 12” going. Refer to updated drawing set, included in this addendum. 

 
Q. What is the concrete finish to be on the landing and steps? 
R. Brush finish the concrete surface to provide additional grip/texture, and chamfer the step edges. 

Proponents are welcome to suggest alternatives. 
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Q. Are the CMU walls to get a sand cement plaster finish? 
R. Yes.  

 
Q. The Contract documents state that the Contractor must coordinate with the scaffold company to 

maintain public access to the beach. From a H&S point of view, once construction starts the public 
should be kept away from these works and we would recommend closing the beach along the length 
of the stone wall. Is there potential for closing a section of the beach? 

R. Access to the beach may be closed. The contractor should establish their compound before the 
scaffold is removed, to limit access to an unsafe areas.  
 

Q. Will the Contractor be provided with an area which can be used as their compound during the works?  
R. The contractor may fence across the road near the fork, and use the parking lot area as 

laydown/staging/compound. Note that the former Blackbeard’s Hideout may be undergoing 
renovation, so access to that site should be maintained. Any damage to the road or parking area to be 
made good at the contractor’s expense. 
 

Q. Is there a restriction on working hours? 
R. There is no restriction from MPW. Recognizing that the work will be influenced by tides, we will 

request extended working hours on the building permit application. Any specific requirements should 
be included in the proponent’s submittal.  

 
 

END OF ADDENDUM #2 
 
Note: Amendment/addenda will be posted at https://www.gov.bm/procurement-notices. 
Respondents should visit the Government Portal website on a regular basis during the 
Procurement process. 

https://www.gov.bm/procurement-notices
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5.0 FOUNDATIONS

5.1 ALL FOOTINGS AND FOUNDATIONS TO BEAR ON UNDISTURBED SOUND
      ROCK OR WELL COMPACTED GRANULAR FILL.  BEARING MATERIAL IS TO
      REMAIN UNDISTURBED AND BE REVIEWED BY THE ENGINEER PRIOR TO
      PLACING THE CONCRETE FOR FOOTING AND FOUNDATIONS.

5.2 ALL SHORING, SHEETING AND DEWATERING SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY
      OF THE CONTRACTOR

5.3 THE CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE PRECAUTIONS TO PROTECT ALL EXISTING
      AND SURROUNDING INFRASTRUCTURE.

5.4 MASONRY RETAINING WALLS TO BE FILLED WITH CONCRETE AND CURED
      FOR A MINIMUM OF 7 DAYS PRIOR TO BACKFILLING.

5.5 BACKFILL MATERIAL SHALL BE FREE FROM ORGANIC MATTER, CONSTRUCTION
      DEBRIS AND LARGE ROCKS. BACKFILL SHALL BE WELL GRADED AND PLACED
      IN LAYERS NOT EXCEEDING 6". THE BACKFILL SHALL BE WATERED AND
      COMPACTED TO THE SAME DENSITY AS THAT OF THE SURROUNDING SOIL.

6.0 INSPECTION AND TESTING

6.1 CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE 48 HOURS NOTICE TO THE OWNER'S
      REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE INSPECTION OF ALL REINFORCING, INCLUDING
      MASONRY REINFORCING PRIOR TO POURING CONCRETE. NO WORK SHALL
      BE COVERED UP UNTIL SUCH TIME AS THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE
      HAS APPROVED THE WORK.

7.0 DEMOLITION/EXCAVATIONS

7.1 WHERE NECESSARY, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DESIGN AND
      PROVIDE INTERIOR AND EXTERIOR SHORING, BRACING, OR SUPPORT TO
      PREVENT MOVEMENT, SETTLEMENT, OR COLLAPSE OF THE STRUCTURE
      OR ELEMENT TO BE DEMOLISHED, AND ADJACENT FACILITIES OR WORK
      TO REMAIN.

7.2 IF UNEXPECTED MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL OR STRUCTURAL ELEMENTS
      ARE ENCOUNTERED, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT DETAILS OF SUCH
      TO THE ENGINEER.

7.3 THE CONTRACTOR SHALL LOCATE AND IDENTIFY EXISTING UNDERGROUND
      UTILITIES WITHIN THE SITE EXTENTS. IF UTILITIES ARE TO REMAIN, THE
      CONTRACTOR SHALL ENSURE THAT THE UTILITIES ARE SUPPORTED AND
      PROTECTED THROUGHOUT THE WORKS.

8.0 CONNECTIONS

8.1 ALL NAILS, BOLTS, SCREWS, CLIPS, ANCHORS AND HURRICANE TIES SHALL
      BE GALVANIZED OR STAINLESS STEEL.

8.2 IF GALVANIZED : ALL NUTS, BOLTS, WASHERS, NAILS, SCREWS, AND OTHER
      FASTENERS SHOULD BE HOT DIPPED GALVANIZED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
      ASTM A153. ALL JOIST HANGERS, HURRICANE CLIPS AND OTHER
      CONNECTIONS SHALL BE HOT DIPPED GALVANIZED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
      ASTM A525 TO A MINIMUM OF G60.

8.3 ANCHOR BOLTS SHALL BE SET IN THE CORRECT LOCATIONS USING
      TEMPLATES AND NOT FORCE FIT AFTER CONCRETING.

8.4 NAILS AND NAILED CONNECTIONS SHALL COMPLY WITH APPENDIX B : NAIL
      FASTENING SCHEDULE IN THE BERMUDA RESIDENTIAL BUILDING CODE 2014.

8.5 BOLT HOLES SHALL BE NO LARGER THAN 1
16" GREATER THAN THE BOLT

      SHANK DIAMETER. ALL BOLTED JOINTS SHALL HAVE WASHERS FITTED
      UNDER THE HEAD OF THE BOLT AND UNDER THE NUT. THE SIZE OF
      WASHERS FOR 12" BOLTS AND UNDER SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 2"
      DIAMETER X 18" THICK AND FOR 58" BOLTS A MINIMUM OF 2 12"
      DIAMETER AND 3

16" THICK.

8.6 BOLT STRENGTH TO BE A MINIMUM OF CLASS 4.6 OR EQUIVALENT.

8.7 ANCHOR ROD/BOLT/CONNECTION INSTALLATIONS MUST FOLLOW
      THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR USE (IFU) DOCUMENTATION PROVIDED WITH
      THE PRODUCT.

NOTES

1.0  GENERAL

1.1  THESE NOTES APPLY TO ALL STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS AND ARE TO BE READ
        IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

1.2  DO NOT SCALE THE DRAWINGS. DIMENSIONS ARE TO BE USED AS A GUIDE
        ONLY.

1.3  DIMENSIONS SHOWN IN THIS DRAWING SET ARE APPROXIMATE.
       ALL DETAILS AND ARRANGEMENTS OF EXISTING CONDITIONS, DIMENSIONS,
       ETC. TO BE FIELD VERIFIED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. ANY
       DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE ENGINEER'S ATTENTION.

1.4  CONTRACTOR TO MAKE GOOD ANY DAMAGES CAUSED ON SITE, REPAIRING
        TO MATCH EXISTING OR AS APPROVED BY THE OWNER.

1.5  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SUPPLY ALL NECESSARY MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT AND
       LABOR TO COMPLETE THE WORK, UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED.

1.6  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE COMPETENT SUPERVISORY STAFF AT ALL
       TIMES DURING THE WORK. TRADESMEN ARE TO BE SKILLED AND QUALIFIED
       FOR THE TASKS ASSIGNED.CONTRACTOR SHALL SUPPLY ALL NECESSARY
       MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT AND LABOR TO COMPLETE THE WORK, UNLESS
       OTHERWISE INDICATED.

1.7  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ALL SAFETY EQUIPMENT AND GEAR
       TO CONFORM TO THE NATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY REGULATIONS
       APPLICABLE TO BERMUDA.

1.8  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL SITE CONDITIONS AND FAMILIARIZE
       THEMSELVES WITH THE SCOPE OF WORK.

1.9  ALL CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS ARE TO COMPLY WITH THE MINIMUM
       REQUIREMENTS OF THE BERMUDA RESIDENTIAL BUILDING CODE 2014.

2.0  CONCRETE

2.1  STRUCTURAL CONCRETE STRENGTH TO BE A MINIMUM OF 28 MPa (4000 PSI)

2.2  CONCRETE FILL FOR BLOCKWORK MUST BE A MINIMUM OF 2000 PSI STRENGTH 
       AT 28 DAYS.

2.3  LEAN MIX AND RUBBLE CONCRETE TO HAVE A MINIMUM STRENGTH OF 2000 PSI

2.4  REINFORCING CHAIRS TO BE PLASTIC, OR CONCRETE.

2.5  NO ADDITIVES TO BE USED WITHOUT THE PRIOR APPROVAL OF THE 
       ENGINEER. NO WATER SHALL BE ADDED TO THE MIX ON SITE WITHOUT 
       THE PRIOR APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER.

2.6  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL GIVE A MINIMUM OF 48 HOURS NOTICE TO THE 
       ENGINEER PRIOR TO POURING ANY CONCRETE.

2.7  CONCRETE COVER TO BE 3" FOR CONCRETE CAST AGAINST AND PERMANENTLY 
       EXPOSED TO EARTH (E.G. RETAINING WALLS AND FOUNDATIONS), 2" FOR 
       CONCRETE EXPOSED TO WEATHER AND 1.5" FOR CONCRETE NOT EXPOSED TO 
       WEATHER OR EARTH U.N.O

2.8  CONCRETE IS TO CURE FOR 7 DAYS MINIMUM PRIOR TO LOADING U.N.O.

2.9  EXPERIENCED PERSONNEL SHALL MECHANICALLY VIBRATE ALL STRUCTURAL 
       CONCRETE IN THE APPROVED MANNER. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE AT 
       LEAST TWO FULLY OPERATIONAL POKER VIBRATORS ON SITE DURING 
       CONCRETE PLACEMENT.

2.10  ALL FORMWORK, SHORING AND RESHORING SHALL BE DESIGNED BY THE 
       CONTRACTOR'S REGISTERED ENGINEER.

2.11 FOUNDATION WALLS, SLABS, BEAMS AND GIRDERS SHALL NOT HAVE JOINTS 
         IN A HORIZONTAL PLANE UNLESS SHOWN OTHERWISE.

2.12 CONCRETE SLUMP TO BE AS FOLLOWS : 
         BEAMS/FOOTINGS/COLUMNS AND SLABS = 5" +/- 1" 
         MASONRY BLOCK FILL = 7" +/- 1"

3.0  REINFORCING STEEL

3.1  REINFORCING STEEL SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM
       STRENGTH OF 400 MPa (OR APPROVED EQUAL).

3.2  REINFORCING STEEL TO BE GALVANISED IN ACCORDANCE CLASS II STANDARD
       ASTM A767.

3.3  REBAR AT ENDS OF CONCRETE LINTELS, WALL STIFFENERS, COLUMNS,
       STAIRS, PAD FOOTINGS, BEAMS AND SLABS ARE TO HAVE STANDARD 90°
       BENDS WITH THE MINIMUM ANCHORAGE/LAP LENGTHS. ANY REBAR WHICH
       IS CUT AND BENT ON SITE SHALL HAVE TWO APPLICATIONS OF A
       `ZINC' RICH PAINT APPLIED TO THE ENDS AND DAMAGED AREAS TO THE
       APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER.

3.4  MINIMUM LAP LENGTHS UNO:
       T25 - 1500 (60")
       T20 - 1000 (40")
       T16 - 800  (32")
       T12 - 600  (24")
       T10 - 500  (20")
       MESH - 305 (12")

3.5  MINIMUM ANCHORAGE LENGTHS UNO:
       T20 - 850  (34")
       T16 - 700  (28")
       T12 - 550  (22")
       T10 - 300  (12")

4.0 MASONRY

4.1 WALLS TO BE CONSTRUCTED OF RUNNING BOND MASONRY.

4.2 FOR BED AND HEAD JOINTS : UNLESS OTHERWISE REQUIRED OR INDICATED ON
      THE PROJECT DRAWINGS, HEAD AND BED JOINTS SHALL BE 38"(10mm) THICK,
      EXCEPT THAT THE THICKNESS OF THE BED JOINT OF THE STARTING COURSE
      PLACED OVER FOUNDATIONS SHALL NOT BE LESS THAN 14" (7mm) AND NOT
      MORE THAN 34" (19mm)

4.3 IN EACH WYTHE OF MASONRY LAID IN RUNNING BOND, HEAD JOINTS IN
      SUCCESSIVE COURSES SHALL BE OFFSET BY NOT LESS THAN ONE-FOURTH
      THE UNIT LENGTH.

4.4 FOR MASONRY UNIT PLACEMENT, THE MORTAR SHALL BE SUFFICIENTLY
      PLASTIC AND UNITS SHALL BE PLACED WITH SUFFICIENT PRESSURE TO
      EXTRUDE MORTAR FROM THE JOINT AND PRODUCE A TIGHT JOINT.
      DEEP FURROWING OF BED JOINTS THAT PRODUCES VOIDS IS NOT PERMITTED.
      ANY UNITS DISTURBED TO THE EXTENT THAT THE INITIAL BOND IS BROKEN
      AFTER INITIAL PLACEMENT SHALL BE REMOVED AND RE-LAID IN
      FRESH MORTAR. SURFACES TO BE IN CONTACT WITH MORTAR
      SHALL BE CLEAN AND FREE OF DELETERIOUS MATERIALS.

4.5 MASONRY UNITS SHALL CONFORM TO THE LATEST VERSION OF ASTM C90 (THE
      MINIMUM AVERAGE COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF 3 UNITS SHALL BE 2000 PSI
      BASED ON THE NET AREA OF THE UNITS.

4.6 MORTAR SHALL CONFORM TO THE LATEST VERSION OF ASTM C-270 AND
      SHALL BE OF GRADE S OR GREATER.

4.7 ALL CELLS TO BE FILLED ARE TO BE KEPT CLEAR OF OBSTRUCTIONS.
      ALL CELLS CONTAINING VERTICAL REINFORCING SHALL BE FILLED.
      CELLS BELOW BEARING BEAMS/LINTELS SHALL BE SOLID FILLED AND
      SHALL BE REINFORCED WITH MIN 1-T12 BAR. REBAR TO ANCHOR A
      A MINIMUM OF 2' INTO THE FOOTING.  CELLS ARE TO BE SOLID FILLED TO
      FULL HEIGHT U.N.O.

4.8 FILLED BLOCK WORK MUST BE POURED IN MAXIMUM OF 4' HIGH LIFTS.
      CONCRETE MUST BE STOPPED 2" FROM THE TOP OF THE BLOCK TO
      ALLOW THE NEXT LIFT TO KEY TOGETHER.

4.9 WHERE NEW WALLS BUTT UP AGAINST EXISTING WALLS, A 4" KEY INTO THE
      EXISTING WALL IS REQUIRED EVERY 2ND COURSE OF BLOCK.

4.10 CONCRETE BOND BEAMS SHALL BE PROVIDED ON THE TOP OF ALL NEW
         WALLS. THESE SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 8" DEEP AND THE SAME WIDTH
         AS THE WALL ITSELF. THEY SHALL BE REINFORCED WITH A MINIMUM OF
         2 T12 BOT CONTINUOUS THROUGHOUT THE BOND BEAM.
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